
Minutes of Ridgecrest’s  
City Organization and Services Committee 

February 8, 2007 
        5:00 p.m. 

 
 
City Council Conference Room 
100 West California Avenue 
Ridgecrest, California  93555 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 5:00p.m.       
 
PRESENT: Council Members: Mayor Holloway and Vice Mayor Wiknich 
 
STAFF: Harvey Rose, City Manager; Mike Avery, Assistant City Manager; Jim 

Winegardner, Administrative Services Director; Dennis Speer, Public Works 
Director; Ron Strand, Deputy Chief of Police; Eva Peterson, Executive Secretary  

 
OTHER ATTENDEES:  Louis Monterroso, Kern County Fire Department; John Hayes, Kern 

County Fire Department 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Moved by Mayor Holloway, 2nd by Vice Mayor Wiknich 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Moved by Mayor Holloway, 2nd by Vice Mayor Wiknich 
 
ORGANIZATIONAL ISSUES: 
Committee Goals – Overview and Structure 
H. Rose stated that the City Organization and Services Committee is staffed by the City 
Manager’s Office; this committee will assimilate the former Organization Committee and 
the former Legislative Committee.  This group will review and advise the City Council 
on issues pertaining to general administration, finance, technology, risk management, 
human resources, transit, police and fire services, and intergovernmental relations (i.e. 
KernCog, LAFCO, League of California Cities).  Two Council Members appointed by 
the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Council and two Planning Commissioners, 
nominated by the Commission and appointed by the Mayor, shall serve on the committee. 
 
Past Agenda Items  
• H. Rose stated that the Fire Services Agreement has not been put forward.  Still 

awaiting several items.  Recently spoke with Jason Caudle and issue is on the table.  
Lemeiux and O’Neil’s attorney that was handling this issue for the City left the firm; 
there is a new member at the firm drafting the agreement.  The current City/County 
agreement dates back to the mid-80’s.  Auditors are looking at County records and will 
have a report to us soon. 

• H. Rose stated that at the recent County Transit meeting we informed them that we will 
give sufficient notification if the City discontinues service.  They stated they will pay  

 
 



City Organization and Services Committee Meeting Minutes (cont’d) 
Page 2 
 
• the full cost of service, provided a properly worded contract can be drafted.  Currently, 

they are $50,000 short. 
• D. Speer stated regarding a scheduled unmet needs hearing:  mandatory publications, 

senior citizens notifications and postings on buses regarding public hearings have taken 
place.  J. Winegardner stated that we have historically done everything as was 
discussed at City Council last night. 

• H. Rose stated that although requested, we cannot run a cab service for college 
students.  We can run an am/pm bus route only.  The City has approached the college 
and through surveys discovered the best service would be an hourly service, but the 
rider ship is not there. 

• Mayor Holloway requested the last 5 City Organization agendas. 
 
FY 07 Budget Process Plan 
J. Winegardner described his “Budget Cycle Overview” to the City Organization and 
Services Committee.  J. Winegardner began by using the tree analogy used during the 
Budget Festival beginning with the services provided by Police, Cultural Affairs, 
Community Development and Public Services.  Those groups are then supported by 
Administration, Administrative Services , City Clerk and all other sub-groups, i.e. 
payables, technology, payroll, risk management, etc. 
 
J. Winegardner reviewed the 14 items listed on the Budget Calendar for the 07-08 Budget 
Cycle (see attachment).  Jim stated that at last year’s budget festival the focus was on the 
department’s wish list and he would like the 2008 focus to be on the presentation of the 
DRAFT budget as we know it and on Council’s input.  The DRAFT budget presentation 
should take place between the end of February or beginning of March 2007.   
 
H. Rose stated that with the creation of CIP there will be significant change regarding 
capital funds.  In addition, the state is back-stepping in gas tax money for next year - Prop 
42 and Prop 1B money ($850,000).  Those two major sums drive CIP. 
 
Mayor Holloway asked how much money is still leftover from Wastewater and can we 
borrow from this money for matching funds?  J. Winegardner stated we have used 
approximately $500,000 which leaves $1.5M sitting in Redevelopment.  H. Rose stated 
we can borrow from the $1.5M however, it has to be returned.  J. Winegardner stated that 
$2M borrowed in 2004 and payments are being made at $200,000 per year.  Surplus in 
revenue has come in to Redevelopment.  Mayor Holloway asked if we can borrow the 
money for anything and Hr. Rose stated there are no problems borrowing internally, 
however, you can only borrow for redevelopment projects.  H. Rose stated that these 
projects could not include economic development – the projects would have to eliminate 
blight (i.e. redevelop the old Texas Instrument building or low-mod housing).   
 
 
 



City Organization and Services Committee Meeting Minutes (cont’d) 
Page 3 
 
T. Wiknich asked how long the agency would be in place and H. Rose stated for another 
dozen years.  J. Winegardner explained that he is working on a 5 year extension plan with 
RSG that will be completed in the next 30-45 days.  He will then conduct a public 
hearing when the extension comes forward.  At that point, we will in essence begin with 
2 new starting points.  
 
Mayor Holloway requested that staff communicate with the press on the budget and H. 
Rose stated that Mr. Watkins has already requested a mid-year review, which has already 
been scheduled for March 7th along with year end audit, and a first review of the draft FY 
07 budget.  Vice Mayor Wiknich appreciated the budget information presented at this 
meeting. 
 
Other Items 
Vice Mayor Wiknich asked about the City’s Emergency Plan and was assured by the H. 
Rose, R. Strand and M. Avery that our Department Heads, PD, and EOC personnel have 
been provided with SIMS training and are well manned, trained and prepared for any 
City emergencies.   
 
Vice Mayor Wiknich asked if Ridgecrest is considered a “safe haven” town.  M. Avery 
stated, no.  If there is a crime committed by an illegal immigrant, immigration is notified 
under those circumstances. 
 
ANNOUNCMENTS:  Ron Strand stated PD is sponsoring CERT (community emergency 
responsive team) in order to train the community in light search and rescue, psychology of 
disaster involvement and self help.  The training is scheduled for March. 
 
Next Meeting - March 8th at 5:00pm. 
 
Adjourned - 6:20p.m.  


